BY-LAWS

٥F

MILLPOND ESTATES COMMUNITY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. (a Florida corporation not for profit)

ARTICLE I - IDENTITY

The name of this Corporation is MILLPOND ESTATES COMMUNITY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

The principal office of the Corporation is at 2104 River Parkway East, P.O. Box 448, New Port Richey, Florida, 33552, or at of Directors.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE

This Corporation is organized as a Community Homeowners Association to exercise all powers granted to it as a Corporation under the laws of Florida, these By-Laws and the Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE III - DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

A. DIRECTORS

by a Board of Directors, composed of not less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) persons, as may be determined from time to time by the Voting Members (as defined in ARTICLE VI herein).

Members at the annual meeting of Members and shall hold office until their successors are elected and shall qualify (except as to the first Board of Directors, whose members are designated in the Articles of Incorporation, and who shall serve pursuant to the terms of ARTICLE IX

complete list of Voting Members together with the residence of each, shall be prepared by the Secretary. Such list shall be open at the office of the Corporation for ten (10) days prior to the election for the examination by any Member and shall be produced and kept at the who may be present.

At the first annual meeting of the Members, three

Nomination for election to the Board of Directors from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two or more Members of the Corporation. The Nominating annual meeting of the Members, to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting and such appoint—

Committee shall be announced at each annual meeting and such appoint—

Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than voting Members of the Corporation except that this provision shall be appointed by Declarant. Election to the Board of Directors by secret written ballot. At such election the Voting Members or the Articles of Incorporation or any successors by secret written ballot. At such election the Voting Members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as herein.

No Director shall receive or be entitled to any compensation for his services as Director, but shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable expenses sustained by him as such, if incurred upon B. OFFICERS The Officers of the Corporation shall be: a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a Secretary and a Treasurer and such other Officers as the Board of Directors may designate. The Officers named in the Articles of Incorporation shall serve until the first regular meeting of the Board, and at such meeting the Board shall elect the aforesaid Officers. Officers elected at the first meeting of the Board shall hold office until the next ensuing meeting of Directors following the next succeeding annual meeting of Members or until their successors shall have been elected and shall qualify. C. RESIGNATION AND VACANCY

Any Director or Officer of the Corporation may resign at any time by instrument in writing. Resignations shall take effect at the time specified therein, and if no time is specified, at the time of receipt by the President or Secretary of the Corporation. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

When a vacancy occurs on the Board, the vacancy shall be filled by the remaining Directors at their next special or regular meeting, by electing a person who shall serve until the next annual meeting of Members, at which time a Director will be elected to complete the remaining portion of the unexpired term.

When a vacancy occurs in an office for any cause before an Officer's term has expired, the office shall be filled by the Board at Its next meeting by electing a person to serve for the unexpired term or until a successor has been elected by the Board and shall qualify.

D. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board, designate an Executive Committee to consist of three (3) or more Directors which, to the extent provided in the resolution, shall have and exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation, and may have power to authorize the seal of the Corporation to be affixed to all papers which may require it. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and report the same to the Board when required.

 $\frac{\text{ARTICLE}}{\text{THEREOF}}$ - POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE CORPORATION AND THE EXERCISE

The Corporation shall have all power granted to it by law, the DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS to be executed by Declarant and to be filed in the Official Books and Records of Pasco County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as "Declaration"), the SUBDIVISION RESTRICTIONS to be executed by Declarant and be filed in the Official Books and Records of Pasco County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as the "Restrictions"), and the Articles of Incorporation, all of which powers shall be exercised by its Board of Directors unless the exercise thereof is otherwise restricted in the Declaration or Restrictions, the Articles of Incorporation, these By-Laws, or by law; and the aforementioned powers of the Corporation shall include,

- (1) All of the powers specifically provided for in the Declaration and Restrictions;
- to promulgate reasonable rules and regulations by the majority vote of (2) The power to levy and collect assessments, and the Board of Directors pursuant to Article VII, B3 herein.
 - (3) The power to levy and collect special

- purpose of paying the Corporation's pro rata share of the maintenance expenses of the Common Area as defined in the Articles of defined therein;
- provisions of the Declaration, the Restrictions, Articles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws;
- suit or otherwise and to suspend the voting rights and right to use of the receational facilities contained in the Common Area of a Member during any period in which such Member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment. Such rights may also be suspended for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for infraction of the published rules and regulations for the Common Area;
- Corporation funds, and to determine the manner of receiving, depositing, and disbursing corporate funds, and the form of check and the vided by these By-Laws;
- (8) The power to exercise for the Corporation all not reserved to the Membership by the Articles of Incorporation or other provisions of these By-Laws;
- (9) The power to subscribe to and enter into a agent of any nature or kind; and
- (10) The power to purchase Officers' and Directors' Officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to become bonded, as the Board may deem to be necessary.

ARTICLE V - DUTIES OF OFFICERS

- A. The President shall:
- (1) Act as presiding officer at all meetings of the Board of Directors;
- Directors and of Members;
- (3) Sign all checks, contracts, promissory notes, deeds and other instruments on behalf of the corporation, except those which the Board of Directors specifies may be signed by other persons:
- (4) Perform all acts and duties usually required of Directors are carried out; and
- (5) Appoint committees including but not limited all committees, and to be ex-officio member of Members.
 - B. The Vice President shall:
- (1) Act as presiding officer at all meetings of absent;
- President, in the President's absence; and

- (3) Perform such other duties as may be required of him by the Board.
- C. Should the President and Vice President be absent from any meeting, the Directors shall select from the Board a person to act as chairman of the meeting.

D. The Secretary shall:

- (1) Attend all regular and special meetings of the Members of the Corporation and of the Board of Directors and keep all records and minutes of proceedings thereof or cause the same to be done;
- (2) Have custody of the corporate seal and affix same when necessary or required;
- Board of Directors, prepare and serve notice of meetings, and keep Membership books;
- (4) Perform such other duties as the Board may determine and on all occasions in the execution of his duties, act under the supervision, control and direction of the Board; and
- (5) Have custody of the minute book of the meetings of Directors and Members, which minute book shall at all times be available at the office of the Corporation for the information of Lot owners or their authorized representatives, and act as transfer agent to record transfers, and regulations in the corporate books. The Corporation shall retain the minutes for a period of not less than seven years.

E. The Treasurer shall:

- (1) Attend all meetings of the Membership and of the Board of Directors;
- (2) Receive such moneys as shall be paid into his hands for the account of the Corporation, and disburse funds as may be ordered by the Board, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and be custodian of all securities, contracts, leases and other important documents of the Corporation which he shall keep safely deposited;
- financial transactions of the Corporation in books belonging to the Corporation, and deliver such books to his successor. He shall prepare and distribute to all Directors at least ten (10) days prior to each annual meeting, and whenever else required, a summary of the financial transactions and condition of the Corporation for the preceding year. He shall make a full and accurate report on matters and business pertaining to his office to the Members at the annual meeting, and make all reports required by law.
- (4) Cause an annual audit of the Corporation books to be made at the completion of each fiscal year.

ment agreement, it shall be proper to delegate such of the Treasurer's functions to the management agent as is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI MEMBERSHIP

A. Membership in the Corporation is limited to Owner(s), as defined in Article I, Section 2, of the Declaration. Membership is automatically conferred upon acquisition of a Lot, as defined in Article I, Section 6, of the Declaration, and as evidenced by the filing of a deed to such Lot. Membership is an incident of ownership and is not separately transferable.

B. There shall be one person with respect to each Lot ownership who shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Corporation. Said person is the "Voting Member". If a Lot is owned by more than one person, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated in a certificate signed by all of the record Owners of the Lot, and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation. If a Lot is owned by a corporation, or partnership, and officer, partner or employee thereof entitled to cast the vote of the Lot for the corporation or partnership shall be designated in a certificate for this purpose, signed by the president or vice president, attested by the secretary or assistant secretary of the corporation or general partner of a partnership, and filed with the Secretary of the Corporation. The person designated in such certificate who is entitled to cast the vote for a Lot shall be known as the "Voting Member". If such a certificate is not on file with the Secretary of the Corporation for a Lot owned by more than one person or by a corporation, the vote of the Lot concerned shall not be considered in determining the requirement for a quorum, or for any purpose requiring the approval of a person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot, except if said Lot is owned by a husband and wife. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked or until superceded by a subsequent certificate, or until a change in the ownership of the Lot concerned. If the Lot is owned jointly by a husband and wife, the following three provisions are applicable thereto:

1. They may, but they shall not be required to, designate a Voting Member;

- 2. If they do not designate a Voting Member, and if both are present at a meeting and are unable to concur in their decision upon any subject requiring a vote, they shall lose their right to vote on that subject at the meeting; and
- 3. Where they do not designate a Voting Member, and only one is present at a meeting, the person present may cast the Lot vote just as though he or she owned the Lot individually, and without establishing the concurrence of the absent person.

If a Lot is owned by one person, his right to vote shall be established by the recorded deed to the Lot. A vote of a Lot is not divisible.

- C. Membership in the Corporation may be transferred only as an incident to the transfer of title to a Lot and shall become effective upon the recording of a deed to such Lot.
- D. Membership shall terminate upon the transfer of title to a Lot.

ARTICLE VII - MEETINGS, SPECIAL MEETINGS, QUORUMS, PROXIES

A. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

All meetings of the Corporation shall be held at the office of the Corporation, or may be held at such time and place as shall be stated in the notice thereof.

ANNUAL MEETINGS: Annual Members' meeting shall be held at the office of the Corporation or may be held at such place as shall be stated in the notice thereof upon a date appointed by the Board of Directors, which shall fall on the second Wednesday in January each year. No meeting shall be held on a legal holiday. The meetings shall be held at such time as the Board shall appoint from time to time. The first annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the second Wednesday in January of the year following the year in which the Corporation is incorporated at such time as the Board of Directors shall designate. If the day of the first annual meeting of the Members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

The Order of Business shall be as follows:

- (1) roll call of Voting Members;
- (2) proof of notice of meeting;
- (3) reading of minutes of last annual meeting;
- (4) reports of Officers;
- (5) report of committees;
- (6) election of Directors;
- (7) old business;
- (8) new business;
- (9) adjournment.

SPECIAL MEETINGS: Special meetings shall be held whenever called by the President, or by a majority of the Board of Directors and must be called by the Secretary, upon receipt of a written request from Voting Members of the Corporation owning ten (10%) percent of the Lots. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the objects and action to be taken, as stated in the notice of the meeting.

PROXIES: Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies must be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation prior to the meeting. A proxy shall be valid only for the meeting for which it was executed and shall entitle the holder thereof to vote until revoked in writing by the grantor, such revocation to be lodged with the Secretary, or until the death or legal incompetence of the grantor.

QUORUM: A quorum for the transaction of business at any annual or any special meeting shall consist of a majority of the Voting Members, represented either in person or by proxy; but the Voting Members present at any meeting although less than a quorum, may adjourn the meeting to a future date.

VOTING REQUIRED TO MAKE DECISIONS: When a quorum is present at any meeting the vote of a majority of the Voting Members present in person or by proxy shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the Articles of Incorporation or these By-Laws or any applicable statute provide otherwise, in which event the vote prescribed by the Articles or the By-Laws or such statute shall control.

B. DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

- 1. The organizational meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held at the office of the Corporation immediately following the adjournment of the annual meeting of Members. The Board of Directors may establish a schedule of regular meetings to be held at such place as the Directors may designate, in which event no notice need be sent to the Directors once said schedule has been adopted.
- 2. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President on five (5) days' notice to each Director (in writing) to be delivered by mail or in person. Special meetings may also be called on written request of one Director. All notice of special meetings shall state the purpose. All meetings, except during the tenure of the first Board, shall be open to all Lot Owners.
- 3. QUORUM: At all meetings of the Board of the transaction of business, and the acts of a majority of Directors present at such meeting at which a quorum is not present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors. The presiding officer may adjourn at any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is not present, and transacted at the meeting as originally called may be concluded without further notice.

ARTICLE VIII - NOTICE

Written notice of annual and special meetings of the Members shall be given to each Owner at least fourteen (14) days prior to said annual or special meeting. Unless an Owner waives in writing the right to receive notice of the annual or special meeting by mail, the notice of the annual or special meeting shall be sent by mail to each Lot Owner and the post office certificate of mailing shall be retained as proof of such mailing. An Owner may waive notice of meetings and may take action by written agreement without meetings.

ARTICLE IX - PROCEDURE

Robert's Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of corporate proceedings when not in conflict with the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Corporation or with the Statutes of Florida.

ARTICLE X - ASSESSMENTS AND MANNER OF COLLECTION

The Board of Directors has the sole power to and shall from time to time fix and determine the amounts necessary to pay the assessments. Assessments include those expenses described in the Declaration and Restrictions, and any other expenses designated as assessments by the Board of Directors, under the authority and sanction of the Declaration and Restrictions.

The Board of Directors shall mail copies of the proposed annual budget of assessments to the Voting Members annually. So long as the initial Board remains in office or the Declarant is in control of the Board of Directors, the Board shall not impose an assessment for any year greater than five (5%) percent of the prior fiscal or calendar year's assessment without approval of two-thirds (2/3) of each class of Members qualified to vote in person or by proxy at a meeting duly called for this purpose.

Funds for the payment of assessments shall be assessed against and shall be a lien against the Lots in equal proportion or percentage.

Regular assessments shall be paid by the Members on the first of each month.

Special assessments, should they be required by the Board of Directors, shall be levied and paid in the same manner as regular assessments.

When the Board of Directors has determined the amount of any assessment, the Secretary shall transmit a statement of such assessment to each Lot Owner. Assessments are payable at the office of the Corporation.

Assessments are necessarily made upon projections and estimates of the Board of Directors, and may be in excess of or less than the sums required to meet the requirements of the maintenance, repair and replacement of certain property described in the Declaration, in which event the Board of Directors may increase or diminish the amount of an assessment and make such adjustments in cash, or otherwise, as they shall deem proper, including the assessments of each Lot Owner of his proportionate share of any deficiency, if necessary. Notice of all changes in assessments shall be given to all Lot Owners.

Assessments are due on the dates stated in the notice of assessment, and thereafter, after being delinquent for ten (10) days, shall bear interest at eight. (8\$) percent per annum until paid.

In the event an assessment is not paid when it is due and payable, the Corporation, through the Board of Directors, may proceed to enforce and collect said assessment from the delinquent Owner in any manner provided for by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws. Each Lot Owner shall be individually responsible for the payment of assessments against his Lot and for

payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred by the Corporation in the collection of sums due and the enforcement of any lien held by the Corporation, including attorneys' fees on appeals, if any.

If a Lot Owner shall be in default in the payment of an installment upon any assessment, the Board of Directors may accelerate the remaining monthly installments for the fiscal year upon notice thereof to the Owner and, thereupon, the unpaid balance of the assessment shall become due upon the date stated in the notice, but not earlier than fifteen (15) days after delivery of or the mailing of such notice to the Owner.

ARTICLE XI - FISCAL MATTERS

FISCAL YEAR: The fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on the first day of January in each year, provided, however, that the Board of Directors is authorized to change to a different fiscal year at such time as the Board of Directors deems it advisable.

DEPOSITORIES: The funds of the Corporation shall be deposited in a bank or banks in Pasco County, Florida, in an account for the Corporation under resolutions approved by the Board of Directors, and shall be withdrawn only over the signature of such Officers or persons as may be designated by the Board of Directors. Said funds shall be used only for corporate purposes.

FIDELITY BONDS: Fidelity bonds may be required by the Board of Directors from all Officers and employees of the Corporation, and from the person, firm or corporation handling or responsible for Corporation funds. The premiums for such bonds shall be paid by the Corporation.

RECORDS: The Corporation shall maintain accounting records according to good accounting practices which shall be open to inspection by any Owner at reasonable times. Such records shall include a record of receipts and expenditures on account of each Owner, the amount of each assessment, the due dates and amount of each assessment, the amounts paid upon the account, and the balance due, a register for the names of any mortgage holders or lien holders who have notified the Corporation of their liens and to which lien holders the Corporation will give notice of default if required.

ANNUAL STATEMENT: The Board of Directors shall present at each annual meeting a full and clear statement of the business and condition of the Corporation.

INSURANCE: The Corporation shall procure, maintain and keep in full force and effect all insurance required by the Declaration, Restrictions, Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws or by law.

ARTICLE XII - VIOLATIONS AND DEFAULTS

In the event of a violation (other than non-payment of an assessment by an Owner) of any of the provisions of the Declaration, Restrictions, the Articles of Incorporation, these By-Laws, or the Rules and Regulations of the Corporation, the Corporation, after reasonable notice to cure, not to exceed ten (10) days, shall have all rights and remedies provided by law, including without limitation (and such remedies shall or may be cumulative) the right to sue for damages, the right to injunctive relief, and in the event of a failure to pay assessments, the right to foreclose its lien as provided in the Declaration and Restrictions; and in every such proceeding, the Owner shall be liable for court costs and the Corporation's reasonable attorneys' fees including attorneys' fees on appeals. If the Corporation elects to enforce its lien by foreclosure, the Owner shall be required to pay a reasonable rent for his Lot during litigation and the Corporation shall be entitled to the appointment of a receiver to collect such rent. A suit to collect unpaid assessments may be prosecuted by the Corporation without waiving the lien securing such unpaid assessments.

Each Owner shall be liable for the expense of any maintenance, repair or replacement rendered necessary by his act, neglect or carelessness, or by that of any member of his family, or his or their guests, employees, agents or lessees, as provided for by Florida Law. Such liability shall include any increase in insurance rates occasioned by use, misues, occupancy or abandonment of any Lot or its appurtenances. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be construed as as to modify any waiver by the insurance comany of rights of subrogation. The expense for any maintenance, repair or replacement required, as provided in this Article, shall be charged to said Owner as a specific item which shall be a lien against said Lot with the same force and effect as if the charge were a part of the assessment.

ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS

These By-Laws may be amended in manner as provided in Article X of the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation.

ARTICLE XIV - VALIDITY

If any By-Law shall be adjudged invalid, such fact shall not affect the validity of any other By-Law.

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Every Director and Officer of the Corporation shall be indemnified by the Corporation to the full extent permitted by law against all expenses and liabilities, including attorneys' fees reasonably incurred by or imposed upon him, including attorneys' fees on appeal, in connection with any proceedings or any settlement thereof, to which he may be a party, or in which he may become involved by reason of his being or having been a Director or Officer of the Corporation, whether or not he is a Director or Officer at the time such expenses are incurred, except in such cases wherein the Director or Officer is adjudged guilty of breach of his duties; provided that all settlement must be approved by the Board of Directors as being in the best interest of the Corporation. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which such Director or Officer may be entitled under law.

ARTICLE XVI - LIABILITY SURVIVES TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP

The termination of ownership of a Lot or Membership in the Corporation shall not relieve or release any such former Owner or Member from any liability or obligations incurred under or in any way connected with Millpond Estates Community Homeowners Association, Inc. during the period of such ownership and membership, or impair any rights or remedies which the Corporation may have against such former Owner or Member arising out of or in any way connected with such ownership and membership and the covenants and obligations incident thereto.

ARTICLE XVII - MORTGAGE REGISTER

The Corporation may maintain a register of all mortgages, and at the request of a mortgagee, the Corporation shall forward copies of all notices for unpaid Assessments or violations served upon an Owner to said mortgagee. If a register is maintained, the Board of Directors may make such charge as it deems appropriate against the applicable Lot for supplying the information provided herein.

ARTICLE XVIII - CONSTRUCTION TO BE CONSISTENT WITH DECLARATION

These By-Laws and the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation shall be construed in case of any ambiguity or lack of clarity consistent with the provisions of the Declaration.

The foregoing was adopted as the By-Laws of MILLPOND ESTATES COMMUNITY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a corporation not for profit,

under the laws of the State of Florida, at the first meeting of its Board of Directors.

Joyce Orbrecht
Secretary

Approved:

President

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF

مهمه

Robert C. Kimpton and Joyce Albrecht, as President and Secretary respectively, of Millpond Estates Community Homeowners Association, Inc., a Florida corporation not for profit, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and who acknowledged before me that they executed the same in the name of and for said corporation and that they were authorized to do so.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in County and State last aforesaid this 36: day of May, 1985.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires: Notary Public, State of Florida at Lange My Commission Expires Oct. 18, 1988

MILLPOND ESTATES COMMUNITY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC

Amendment Revisions:

By - Law Article XI - FISCAL MATTERS Removing two (2) sentences in ANNUAL BUDGET paragraph nine (9) and adding a paragraph intitled RESERVES

ANNUAL BUDGET The proposed annual budget of common expenses shall be detailed and show amounts by accounts and expense classification. In addition to annual operating expenses, the budget shall include reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance The accounts shall include, but not be limited to receive replacement, building painting, pavement and parking resurfacing. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by means of a formula which is based upon estimate life and estimate replacement cost of each reserve than

RESERVES. Reserve accounts shall include, but are not limited to, roof replacement, building painting, and parking area resurfacing. The amount to be reserved shall be computed by means of a formula which is based upon estimate life and estimate replacement cost or deferred maintenance of each reserve item. The Association may adjust replacement reserve assessments annually to take into account any extension of the useful life of a reserve item caused by deferred maintenance. The Operating Budget's Reserve line item may only be waived or reduced upon the vote of a majority of all Association. Members Reserve funds and any interest accruing thereon shall remain in the reserve accounts for authorized reserve expenditures, unless their use for other purposes is approved in advance by a majority vote of all Association Members.

William M Leng

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF PASCO

WILLIAM N. LENTZ, TREASURER, APPEARED AND PRESENTED HIS FL. DR. LIC. ON THE 6TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 1994

NOTARY PUBLIC

LA FILM SAME THAT

NOTARY PUBLIC CONTROL

CONTRIBUTE ON TO COLLEGE

SYCODAY SOME TO A SECOND SAME

SYCODAY SAM

NAUD ISENTRUTSKY
4204 FINDEVER ST.
NEW PORT RICHEY, FL 34653

Rcpt: 37291 Rec: 6.00
OS: 0.00 IT: 9.00
11/06/95 _______ Opty Clerk

JED PITTMAE, PASCO COUNTY CLERK
11/06/95 12:28pm l of 1
OR BK 3494 PG 1479

Milipond Estates Community Economics Association, Inc.

Amendment To:

By-Law - Article XI - Fiscal Matters - (add the following paragraph

SPENDING CAPS: Expenditures for new assets, additions, alterations, or improvements to Millpond Estates Community Homeowners Association Inc. property are limited to:

- A. A total of \$6.650.00 (the cap) in a fiscal year.
- B. Expenditures over \$6,650.00 shall require:
 - A majority approval by the Board of Directors and written notification to all Association Members within thirty (3) days after Board approval.
 - 2 The notification shall explain the purpose of the progress; purchase, additions, alterations or improvements as related to costs, its effect on utility costs and projected maintenance and reserve costs, where applicable. The notification shall describe the method of assessments for the expenditures.
 - 3. Approval by a majority of all Association Members.

Send Derthe fike

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF PASCO

DAVID BENTKOFSKY APPEARED AND PRESENTED FL. DR. LICENSE ON THE 6TH DAY OF

NOVEYBER, 1995.

JAMET W. SCHEST MOTARY PUBLIC

COMMESSION EXPLANT

COMMESSION FOR COMESSION FOR COMMESSION FOR CO

Tot

BY-LAWS

OF

MILLPOND ESTATES SECTION FIVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. (a Florida corporation not-for-profit)

ARTICLE I Identity

The name of this corporation is MILLPOND ESTATES SECTION FIVE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

The principal office of the corporation is at 41t5 Foxboro Drive, New Port Richey, Florida 34653, or at such other place as may be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II Purpose

This corporation is organized as a Homeowners
Association to exercise all powers granted to it as a
corporation under the laws of Florida, these By-Laws and the
Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE III Directors and Officers

A. DIRECTORS

- 1. The affairs of the corporation shall be managed by a Board of Directors, composed of not less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) persons, as may be determined from time to time by the voting members (as defined in Article IV herein).
- 2. Directors shall be elected by the voting members at the annual meeting of Members and shall hold office until their successors are elected and shall qualify (except as to the first Board of Directors, whose members are designated in the Articles of Incorporation, and who shall serve pursuant to the terms of Article IX of the Articles of Incorporation).

At least ten (10) days before the annual meeting, a complete list of which members together with the residence of each, shall be propagated by the Secretary. Such list shall be

MARTIN & FIGURSKI ATTOMETE AT LAW F & BOT 194 HEW PORT BICHEY, PLONIDA MODILITIE (\$13) MELLIJE

-1-

TOTAL

open at the office of the corporation for ten (10) days prior to the election for the examination by any Member and shall be produced and kept at the time and place of election, subject to the inspection of any Member who may be present.

At the first annual meeting of the Hembers, three (3) Directors shall be elected for a term of one (1) year.

Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a nominating committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The nominating committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and two (2) or more Members of the corporation. The nominating committee shall be appointed by the Board of Directors prior to each annual meeting of the Members, to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The nominating committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancles that are to be filled. Directors shall be voting members of the corporation except that this provision shall not apply to the persons designated to be the first Board of Directors by Article IX of the Articles of Incorporation or any successor appointed by Declarant. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election the voting members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of Article VI herein.

No Director shall receive or be entitled to any compensation for his services as Director, but shall be entitled to reimbursement for all reasonable expenses sustained by him as such, if incurred upon the authorization of the Board.

B. OFFICERS

The Officers of the corporation shall be: a

MARTIN & FIGURSKI AFRIKATYS AT JAW F.O. 603 TA HYW POST BETILLY, FLORIDA JAHA-074 (BI)) STEAM President, one (1) or more Vice Presidents, a Secretary and a Treasurer and such other Officers as the Board of Directors may designate. The Officers named in the Articles of Incorporation shall serve until the first regular meeting of the Board, and at such meeting the Board shall elect the aforesaid Officers. Officers elected at the first meeting of the Board shall hold office until the next ensuing meeting of Directors following the next succeeding annual meeting of Members or until their successors shall have been elected and shall qualify.

C. RESIGNATION AND VACANCY

Any Director or Officer of the corporation may resign at any time by instrument in writing. Resignations shall take effect at the time specified therein, and if no time is specified, at the time of receipt by the President or Secretary of the corporation. The acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

when a vacancy occurs on the Board, the vacancy shall be filled by the remaining Directors at their next special or regular meeting of Members, at which time a Director will be elected to complete the remaining portion of the unexpired term.

When a vacancy occurs in an office for any cause before an Officer's term has expired, the office shall be filled by the Board at its next meeting by electing a person to serve for the unexpired term or until a successor has been elected by the Board and shall qualify.

D. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors may, by resolution passed by a majority of the whole Board, designate an Executive Committee to consist of three (3) or more Directors which, to the extent provided in the resolution, shall have and exercise the powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, and may have power to authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all

MARTIN & FIGURSKI ATTORNETS AT LAW FO BOX 764 NEW PORT HICHEY FLORIDA JOSESSION (111) M14179 papers which may require it. The Executive Committee shall keep regular minutes of its proceedings and report the same to the Board when required.

Powers and Duties of the Corporation and the Exercise Thereof

The corporation shall have all power granted to it by law, the Declaration of Covenants and Conditions to be executed by Declarant and to be filed in the Official Records Book of Pasco County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as "Declaration"), the Subdivision Restrictions to be executed by Declarant and to be filed in the Official Records Book of Pasco County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as the "Restrictions"), and the Articles of Incorporation, all of which powers shall be exercised by its Board of Directors unless the exercise thereof is otherwise restricted in the Declaration or Restrictions, the Articles of Incorporation, these By-Laws, or by law; and the aforementioned powers of the corporation shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

- (1) All of the powers specifically provided for in the Declaration and Restrictions;
- (2) The power to join by appropriate resolution the MILLPOND ESTATES COMMUNITY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., and enjoy the right and benefits of a Corporate Member thereof;
- (3) The power to levy and collect assessments, and to promulgate reasonable rules and regulations by the majority vote of the Board of Directors;
- (4) The power to levy and collect special assessments:
- (5) The power to remit moneys collected for the purpose of paying the corporation's pro rata share of the maintenance expenses of the Common Area as defined in the Articles of Incorporation, Declaration, and Restrictions and of the roadways as defined therein;

MARTIN & FIGURSKI ATTIONY TO AT JAME FOR MEDICAL POWERTHER, PLANIFIA JAMES ALL (RES) AND SERVICE keep Membership books;

(4) Perform such other duties as the Board may determine and on all occasions in the execution of his duties, act under the supervision, control and direction of the Board;

- (6) The power to enforce by any legal means the provisions of the Declaration, the Restrictions, Articles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws;
- (7) The power to collect delinquent assessments by suit or otherwise and to suspend the voting rights and right to use of the recreational facilities contained in the Common Area of a Member during any period in which such Member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the corporation or by the MILLPOND ESTATES COMMUNITY HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. Such rights may also be suspended for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for infraction of the published rules and regulations for the Common Area;
- (8) The power to select depositories for the corporation funds, and to determine the manner of receiving, depositing, and disbursing corporate funds, and the form of check and the person or persons by whom the same shall be signed, as otherwise provided by these By-Laws;
- (9) The power to exercise for the corporation all duties and authority vested in or delegated to this corporation and not reserved to the membership by the Articles of Incorporation or other provisions of these By-Laws;
- (10) The power to subscribe to and enter into a contract with any person, firm, corporation or real estate management agent of any nature or kind; and
- (11) The power to purchase Officers' and Directors' liability (errors and omissions) insurance and the power to cause all Officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to become bonded, as the Board may deem to be necessary.

ARTICLE V Duties of Officers

- A. The President shall:
- Act as presiding officer at all meetings of the corporation and of the Board of Directors;

MARTIN & FIGURSKI
ATTORNITS AT LAW
P.D. 603 TH
HEW PORT SICHEY, PLOBIDA
JOSSES (11) 617-419

receipt classifications and shall show the amounts of expense by accounts and expense classification including, if applicable, but not limited to, the following:

- (a) Costs for security;
- (b) Professional and management fees and expenses;
 - (c) Taxes;
 - (d) Expense for utility services;
 - (e) Expense for lawn care;
 - (f) Insurance costs:
 - (g) Administrative and salary expenses; and
- $\mbox{(h) General reserves, maintenance reserves,} \\ \mbox{and depreciation reserves.} \\$
- (5) Shall prepare and distribute to an auditing committee, appointed by the President consisting of no less than three (3) and no more than five (5) Members, at least ten (10) days prior to each annual meeting, and whenever else required, the Financial Reports, but not restricted to, as listed in above Item 4, and make available the corporation books for the purpose of verifying and reviewing the transactions and the balances and status of the various accounts.

In the event the corporation enters into a management agreement, it shall be proper to delegate such of the Treasurer's functions to the management agent as is deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI Membership

A. Membership in the corporation is limited to Owner(s), as defined in Article I, Section 2, of the Declaration. Membership is automatically conferred upon

MARTIN & FIGURSKE ATTORNEYS AT LAW FO MIX THE MIW PORT RICHLET PLOUDA HOLGETTE GLIDWIT 6199 acquisition of a Lot, as defined in Article I, Section 7, of the Declaration, and as evidenced by the filing of a deed to such Lot. Membership is an incident of ownership and is not separately transferable.

B. There shall be one (1) person with respect to each Lot ownership who shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Corporation. Said person is the "Voting Member". If a Lot is owned by more than one (1) person, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot shall be designated in a certificate signed by all of the record Owners of the Lot, and filed with the Secretary of the corporation. If a Lot is owned by a corporation, or partnership, an officer, partner or employee thereof entitled to cast the vote of the Lot for the corporation or partnership shall be designated in a certificate for this purpose, signed by the President or Vice President, attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the corporation or general partner of a partnership, and filed with the Secretary of the corporation. The person designated in such certificate who is entitled to cast the vote for a Lot shall be known as the "Voting Member". If such a certificate is not on file with the Secretary of the corporation for a Lot owned by more than one (1) person or by a corporation, the vote of the Lot concerned shall not be considered in determining the requirement for a quorum, or for any purpose requiring the approval of a person entitled to cast the vote for the Lot, except if said Lot is owned by a husband and wife. Such certificate shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate. or until a change in the ownership of the Lot concerned. If the Lot is owned jointly by a husband and wife, the following three (3) provisions are applicable thereto:

- They may, but they shall not be required to, designate a Voting Member;
 - 2. If they do not designate a Voting Member, and

MARTIN & FIGURSKI ATTOMETS AT LAW F.O. BOX THE MEW PORT INCHIET, PLOSIDA MILLERIN (R.I.) MILLERIN (R.I.) MILLERIN

-9-

if both are present at a meeting and are unable to concur in their decision upon any subject requiring a vote, they shall lose their right to vote in that subject at the meeting; and

3. Where they do not designate a Voting Member and only one (1) is present at a meeting, the person present may cast the Lot vote just as though he or she owned the Lot individually, and without establishing the concurrence of the absent person.

If a Lot is owned by one (1) person, his right to vote shall be established by the recorded deed to the Lot. A vote of a Lot is not divisible.

- C. Membership in the corporation may be transferred only as an incident to the transfer of title to a Lot and shall become effective upon the recording of a deed to such Lot.
- D. Membership shall terminate upon the transfer of title to a Lot.

Meetings, Special Meetings, Quorums and Proxies

A. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

All meetings of the corporation shall be held at the office of the corporation, or may be held at such time and place as shall be stated in the notice thereof.

B. ANNUAL MEETINGS

Annual Members' meeting shall be held at the office of the corporation or may be held at such place as shall be stated in the notice thereof upon a date appointed by the Board of Directors, which shall fall on the second Monday in January each year. No meeting shall be held on a legal holiday. The meetings shall be held at such time as the Board shall appoint from time to time. The first annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the second Monday in January of the year following the year in which the corporation is incorporated at such time as the Board of Directors shall designate. If the day of the first annual meeting of the Members is a legal

MARTIN & FIGURSKI ATTORNETS AT LAW F.D. 303 7th MEW PORT BICHEY, FLORIDA 34454-8784 holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

The order of business shall be as follows:

- (1) roll call of Voting Members; .
- (2) proof of notice of meeting;
- (3) reading of minutes of last annual meeting;
- (4) reports of Officers;
- (5) reports of committees;
- (6) election of Directors;
- (7) old business:
- (3) new business;
- (9) adjournment.

C. SPECIAL HEETINGS

Special meetings shall be held whenever called by the President, or by a majority of the Board of Directors and must be called by the Secretary, upon receipt of a written request from Voting Members of the corporation owning ten percent (10%) of the Lots. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be confined to the objects and actions to be taken, as stated in the notice of the meeting.

D. PROXIES

Votes may be cast in person or by proxy. Proxies must be filed with the Secretary of the corporation prior to the meeting. A proxy shall be valid only for the meeting for which it was executed and shall entitle the holder thereof to vote until revoked in writing by the grantor, such revocation to be lodged with the Secretary, or until the death or legal incompetence of the grantor.

E. QUORUM

A quorum for the transaction of business at any annual or any special meeting shall consist of a majority of the Voting Members, represented either in person or by proxy; but the Voting Members present at any meeting although less than a

MARTIN & FIGURSAL ATTORNEYS AT LAW FO, BITS THE REW FORT PRINTER AT HARDS

mailing. An Owner may waive notice of meetings and may take action by written agreement without meetings.

Procedure

Robert's Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of corporate proceedings when not in conflict with the Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the corporation or with the Statutes of Florida.

ARTICLE X ASSESSMENTS and Manner of Collection

The Board of Directors has the sole power to and shall from time to time fix and determine the amounts necessary to pay the assessments. Assessments include those expenses described in the Declaration and Restrictions, and any other expenses designated as assessments by the Board of Directors, under the authority and sanction of the Declaration and Restrictions. The Board of Directors shall mail copies of the proposed annual budget and assessments to the Voting Members annually.

Funds for the payment of assessments shall be assessed against and shall be a lien against the Lots in equal proportion or percentage except as provided in the Declaration.

Regular assessments shall be paid by the Hembers on the first of each menth.

Special assessments, should they be required by the Board of Directors, shall be levied and paid in the same manner as regular assessments.

When the Board of Directors has determined the amount of any assessment, the Secretary shall transmit a statement of such assessment to each Lot Owner. Assessments are payable at the office of the corporation.

Assessments are necessarily made upon projections and estimates of the Board of Directors, and may be in excess of or less than the sums required to meet the requirements of the maintenance, repair and replacement of certain property

, MARTIN & FIGURSKI
ATTORNETS AT LAW
P.O. BOX 76
PEW PORT BLOCKY, FLOR DA
PASSATTS
(BID INT-MOT

-13-

described in the Declaration, in which event the Board of Directors may increase or diminish the amount of an assessment and make such adjustments in cash, or otherwise, as they shall deem proper, including the assessments of each Lot Owner of his propertionate share of any deficiency, if necessary. Notice of all changes in assessments shall be given to all Lot Owners.

Assessments are due on the dates stated in the notice of assessment, and thereafter, after being delinquent for ten (10) days, shall bear interest at fourteen percent (14%) per annum until paid together with a ten percent (10%) late fee administration charge.

In the event an assessment is not paid when it is due and payable, the corporation, through the Board of Directors, may proceed to enforce and collect said assessment from the delinquent Owner in any manner provided for by the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws. Each Lot Owner shall be individually responsible for the payment of assessments against his Lot and for payment of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred by the corporation in the collection of sums due and the enforcement of any lien held by the corporation, including reasonable attorneys' fees, both at trial and on appeal, if any.

If a Lot Owner shall be in default in the payment of an installment upon any assessment, the Board of Directors may accelerate the remaining installments for the fiscal year upon notice thereof to the Owner and, thereupon, the unpaid balance of the assessment shall become due upon the date stated in the notice, but not earlier than fifteen (15) days after delivery of or the mailing of such notice to the Owner.

ARTICLE XI Fiscal Matter

A. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the corporation shall begin on the first day of January in each year, provided, however, that the Board of Directors is authorized to change to a different fiscal

MARTIN & FIGURSKI
ARTORPES AT CAP
F.O. FOL TO
HER POST RICIETY, FLORID

MARTIN
GUIDZAGO

year at such time as the Board of Directors deems it advisable.

B. <u>DEPOSITORIES</u>

...

The funds of the corporation shall be deposited in a bank or banks in Pasco County, Florida, in an account for the corporation under resolutions approved by the Board of Directors, and shall be withdrawn only over the signature of such Officers or persons as may be designated by the Board of Directors. Said funds shall be used only for corporate purposes.

C. FIDELITY CONDS

Fidelity bonds may be required by the Board of Directors from all Officers and employees of the corporation, and from the person, firm or corporation handling or responsible for corporation funds. The premiums for such bonds shall be paid by the corporation.

D. RECORDS

The corporation shall maintain accounting records according to good accounting practices which shall be open to inspection by any Owner at reasonable times. Such records shall include a record of receipts and expenditures on account of each Owner, the amount of each assessment, the due dates and amount of each assessment, the amounts paid upon the account, and the balance due, a register for the names of any mortgage holders or lien holders who have notified the corporation of their liens and to which lien holders the corporation will give notice of default if required.

E. ANNUAL STATEMENT

The Board of Directors shall present at each control neeting a full and clear statement of the business and condition of the corporation.

F. INSURANCE

The corporation shall procure, maintain and keep in full force and effect all insurance required by the

MARTEL & FIGURSIC ATTORNESS AT CASE FOR SOR TO PROPOSED BICKET, PLANTING MONETIME Dictaration, Restrictions, Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws or by law.

ARTICLE XII Violations and Defaults

In the event of a violation (other than mon-payment of an assessment by ar Owner) of any of the provisions of the Declaration, Restrictions, the Articles of Incorporation, these $\Im_f{ ext{-Laws}}$, or the Rules and Regulations of the corporation, the corporation, after reasonable notice to cure, not to exceed ten (10) days, shall have all rights and remedies provided by law, including without limitation (and such remedies shall or may be cumulative) the right to sue for damages, the right to injunctive relief, and in the event of a failure to pay acressments, the right to foreclose its lien as provided in the Declaration and Restrictions; and in every such proceeding, the Comer shall be lighte for court costs and the corporation's reasonable attorneys' fees including attorneys' fees on appeals. If the corporation elects to enforce its lien by foreclosure, the O mer shall be required to pay a reasonable rent for his Lot Caring litigation and the corporation shall be entitled to the appointment of a receiver to collect such rent. A suit to collect unpeld assessments may be prosecuted by the corporation without waiving the lien securing such unpaid assessments.

Each Owner shall be liable for the expense of any maintenance, repair or replacement rendered necessary by his ect, neglect or carelessness, or by that of any member of his family, or his or their guests, employees, agents or lessees, as provided for by Florida Law. Such liability shall include any increase in inacrance rates occasioned by use, misuse, occupancy or abandonment of any Lot or its appurtenances. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be construed as to modify any waiver by the insurance company of rights of subrogation. The expense for any maintenance, repair or replacement required, as provided in this Article, shall be charged to said Owner as a specific

MARTIN & FIGURSKII
ATTORETS AT LAW
FO TON THE
POT FORMER, PLOTTOR
MORETA

item which shall be a lien against said Lot with the same force and effect as if the charge were a part of the assessment.

ARTICLE XIII Amendment of By-Laws

These Sy-Laws may be amended in a manner as provided in Article X of the Articles of Incorporation of the corporation.

ARTICLE XIV

If any By-Law shall be adjudged invalid, such fact shall not affect the validity of any other By-Law.

ARTICLE XV Indomnification

Every Dimester and Officer of the corporation shall be indemnified by the corporation to the full extent permitted by law against all expenses and liabilities, including attorneys' fees reasonably incurred by or imposed upon him, including attrorneys' fees on appeal, in connection with any proceedings or any settlement thereof, to which he may be a party, or in which he may become involved by reason of his being or having been a Director or Officer of the corporation, whether or not he is a Director or Officer at the time such expenses are incurred, except in such cases wherein the Director or Officer is adjudged guilty of breach of his duties; provided that all settlements must be approved by the Board of Directors as being in the best interest of the corporation. The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of all other rights to which such Director or Officer may be entitled under law.

ARTICLE XVI Lizbility Survives Termination of Membership

The termination of ownership of a Lot or Membership in the corporation shall not relieve or release any such former.

Corner or Tember from any liability or obligations incurred under or in any way connected with MILLPCND ESTATES SECTION FIVE ECHEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., during the period of such

MARTIN & FIGURERS
ATTERVENA AT LAW
TO BY MY
NEW POLITION OF PLOSINA
MENUAL OF THE POLITION OF THE POLITICAL OF THE POLITICAL

ST SEE OF PLORITAN SC MIN OF PASSE)

BEFORE WI, the undersigned authority, personally epicared MICHELD C. MICHOLS and VALERIE L. BLACK, an Prosident and Scottery, respectively of MILLSOND ESTATES SECTION TIVE MICHELS ASSOCIATION. THE. a Florida comporation most-for-profit. In he known to be the persons who executed the foreigning innovem it and who achieveledged before their they ensewed the same in the name of and for said comporation and this they were authorized to do so.

ittities it; band and official soal in Courty and State . Last iforeshid, this $\frac{f^{4/2}}{f^{4/2}}$ day of $\frac{g_{1,1}}{g_{1,2}}$. 1903.

Motary Public
My Commission Figure 19

##19/B

*

475136